METRO

Connecting People Throughout
Kalamazoo County

NOTICE AND AGENDA

CENTRAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (CCTA)
KALAMAZOO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (KCTA)

September 12, 2022
Regular Meeting

Note: The next joint CCTA/KCTA reqular meeting will be held on

Monday, September 26, 2022 at 11:30 a.m.

PLEASE BE ADVISED that the Central County Transportation Authority and Kalamazoo County
Transportation Authority will meet for its meeting on Monday, September 12, 2022 at 11:30 a.m.
for the purpose of:

Item

KCTA
Action

CCTA
Action

N|—

Roll Call

Request to Approve Agenda and Minutes:

a. Agenda for September 12, 2022

Voice Vote

Voice Vote

b. Minutes for July 11, 2022 and August 8, 2022

Voice Vote

Voice Vote

Public Comment

Fiscal Year CCTA FY 2023 and 2024 Budgets*

a. Open Public Hearing/Close Public Hearing

Roll Call

Roll Call

b. Consideration to Adopt the CCTA FY 2023 and FY 2024
Budgets

Roll Call

Roll Call

Consideration to Approve Renewal of Workers Compensation
Insurance with Accident Fund Insurance*

Roll Call

Roll Call

Consideration to Approve Renewal of Liability Insurance with
Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA)*

Roll Call

Roll Call

Consideration to Approve Bid Award for Hybrid Bus Battery
Refresh Kits with Installation™

Roll Call

Roll Call

Consideration to Approve Update on Drug and Alcohol Policy*

Roll Call

Roll Call

Report from Executive Director*

a. Monthly Financial Reports*

b. Monthly Ridership Reports*

10.

Subcommittee Reports

Executive Subcommittee - Joint

Finance Subcommittee — Joint

Outreach Subcommittee - Joint

Pension Board

KATS

~|o|alo o]

Local Advisory Committee (LAC)

G

Chairperson’s Report

12,

Public Comment

13.

Members’ Time




A

Connecting People Throughout
Kalamazoo County

[ 14. | Adjournment Voice Voice Vote

*Indicates attachments included in agenda packet

The meeting will be held in the Metro Linda Teeter Community Room, 530 N. Rose Street, Kalamazoo, MI.
Questions regarding the meeting may be addressed to the Central County Transportation Authority, 530 N. Rose
St., Kalamazoo, M| 49007, or by calling (269) 337-8087.

MEETINGS OF THE CENTRAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY AND KALAMAZOO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY ARE OPEN TO ALL
WITHOUT REGARD TO RACE, SEX, COLOR, AGE, NATIONAL ORIGIN, RELIGICN, HEIGHT, WEIGHT, MARITAL STATUS, DISABILITY, POLITICAL
AFFILIATION, SEXUAL ORIENTATION, OR GENDER IDENTITY. CENTRAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY WILL PROVIDE NECESSARY
REASONABLE AUXILIARY AIDS AND SERVICES, SUCH AS SIGNERS FOR THE HEARING IMPAIRED AND AUDIO TAPES OF PRINTED MATERIALS BEING
CONSIDERED AT THE MEETING/HEARING, TO INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES AT THE MEETING/HEARING UPON FOUR (4) BUSINESS DAYS' NOTICE.
INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES REQUIRING AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES SHOULD CONTACT THE CCTA/KCTA BY WRITING OR CALLING CENTRAL
COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 530 N. ROSE ST., KALAMAZOO, MICHIGAN 43007 (269) 337-8087; TDD PHONE: (269) 383-6464



CENTRAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
KALAMAZOO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Place:
Time:
Staff Present:

Others Present:

Joint Special Meeting
July 11, 2022

The Exchange Building, 155West Michigan Avenue

8:00 A.M.

Sean McBride, Greg Vlietstra, Kathy Schultz, Keshia Woodson-Sow, Rob
Branch, Richard Congdon, Annette Arkush, Barbara Blissett

Doug Eadie

1.) KCTA ROLL CALL

KCTA Members Present: Curtis Aardema, Jeff Breneman, Tafari Brown, Dusty

Farmer, Martin Janssen, Aditya Rama, Tim Sloan, Sam
Urban, Greg Rosine

KCTA Members Absent: None

1.) CCTA ROLL CALL

CCTA Members Present: Curtis Aardema, Rob Britigan, Chris Burns, Dusty Farmer,

Martin Janssen, Garrylee McCormick, Lisa Moaiery, Jim
Pearson, Greg Rosine

CCTA Members Absent: Randy Thompson

A motion was made by the CCTA to excuse the absence of Randy Thompson

Motion: Janssen Second: Aardema

Motion carried by voice vofe.

2.) GOVERNANCE FINE-TUNING WORK SESSION

Mr. Doug Eadie, Doug Eadie and Company, proceeded to facilitate an all day workshop related
to future governing of the Central County Transportation Authority and the Kalamazoo County
Transportation Authority. (A copy of the PowerPoint is on file with the meeting minutes.)

3.) ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by KCTA and CCTA to adjourn the CCTA/KCTA meeting.

Motion: Janssen Support: McCormick

Motion carried by voice vote.

The meeting adjourned at 3:20 P.M.

Greg Rosine
CCTA Chairperson

Barbara Blissett
CCTA Clerk

Greg Rosine
KCTA Chairperson

Barbara Blissett
KCTA Clerk



CENTRAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
KALAMAZOO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
Joint Reqular Meeting
August 8, 2022

Place: Metro Administration Building, 530 N. Rose Street

Time: 11:30 A.M.

Staff Present: Sean McBride, Greg Vlietstra, Cheryl Pesti, Rob Branch, Keshia
Woodson-Sow, Kathy Schultz, Barbara Blissett

Others Present: John Gisler, Marcy Ohs, Karen Schmitt, Kate Goddeyne, Dean Hauk.

1.) KCTA ROLL CALL

KCTA Members Present: Curtis Aardema, Tafari Brown, Martin Janssen, Aditya
Rama, Sam Urban, Greg Rosine
KCTA Members Absent: Jeff Breneman, Dusty Farmer, Tim Sloan

A motion was made by KCTA to excuse the absence of Breneman, Farmer, Sloan.
Motion: Janssen Second: Urban

Motion carried by voice vote.

1). CCTA ROLL CALL

CCTA Members Present: Curtis Aardema, Rob Britigan, Martin Janssen, Garrylee
McCormick, Lisa Moaiery, Randy Thompson, Greg Rosine

CCTA Members Absent: Chris Burns, Dusty Farmer, Jim Pearson

A motion was made by CCTA to excuse the absence of Burns, Farmer, Pearson.
Motion: Janssen Second: Aardema

Motion carried by voice vote.

2.) REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF AGENDA/MINUTES

A motion was made by KCTA and CCTA for approval of the joint CCTA/KCTA meeting
agenda for August 8, 2022, and for approval of the joint CCTA/KCTA regular meeting
minutes for June 13, 2022 with the date change on the secondary header pages.

Motion: McCormick Second: Aardema
Motion carried by voice vote.

3.) PUBLIC COMMENT - None

John Gisler spoke regarding the new the new Avelo Airline that is servicing Kalamazoo, the new
Justice Facility Center is being slowed down by State requirements and the Kalamazoo County
Fair would be returning but without a midway.

4.) PRESENTATION OF PROPOSED CCTA FY 2023 AND FY 2024 BUDGETS

Exec. Dir. McBride explained the budget process and timeline for the 2023-2024 CCTA Budget.
He presented a PowerPoint of budget highlights and said small group meetings would be
scheduled to go over the budget in detail and answer any questions from the boardmembers. (A
copy of the PowerPoint is on file with the meeting minutes.)



CCTA/KCTA Minutes August 8, 2022

Exec. Dir. McBride stated the Finance Subcommittee had met on July 13" and discussed the
preliminary budget.

Exec. Dir. McBride said a public hearing is required to be set, by resolution, for September 12,
2022 to hear any public comments and adoption of the budgets could occur after the public
hearing or at the next meeting on September 26",

Exec. Dir. McBride went over some of the highlights to be presented in this budget:

Five-Year Financial Projection

Covid-19 Relief Funds Summary

KCTA/CCTA Estimated Allocation Comparison

Consolidated actual revenue/expenses for multiple past years to be available upon request

Director of Operations Keshia Woodson-Sow and Deputy Director of Fleet & Facilities Rob Branch
presented an overview of the Operations’ and Fleet & Facilities’ portion of the new proposed
budget.

Exec. Dir. McBride spoke concerning the past year including the impact of Covid on the levels of
operating and service. He said adjustments were made to ensure the safety of our employees
and customers. Exec. Dir. McBride stated on the funding side, the Federal government has
passed three pandemic relief packages. All those packages have provided funding directly to
public transit and been used to stabilize Metro’s budget. He said it's likely for the next two to three
years that this would be a key source in stabilizing the budget.

Exec. Dir. McBride shared that in long-term strategic planning, the Comprehensive Operational
Analysis Study would be implemented and sometime in the next year Metro would conduct a fare
structure and fare collection analysis that will target how we collect fares and what our fare
strategy should be moving forward.

Exec. Dir. McBride proceeded to explain the FY 2023 and FY 2024 Budgets in detail while
responding to questions from the Boards.

A motion was made by the CCTA and KCTA to adopt Resolution 22-003 scheduling a
public hearing on Monday, September 12, 2022 to consider the CCTA FY 2023 and
FY 2024 Budgets.

. Motion: Janssen Support: McCormick
Motion carried by roll call vote.

Ayes: Aardema, Britigan, Brown, Burns, Janssen, McCormick, Moaiery, Rama,
Thompson, Urban, Rosine

Nays: None

Absent: Breneman, Farmer, Pearson, Sloan

5.) YOUTH MOBILITY PROGRAM

Planning Development Manager Kathy Schultz provided an overview of the Youth Mobility Fund
Program which provides 400 bus passes for Kalamazoo Central High School, Loy Norrix High
School, and Phoenix and is funded through the Foundation for Excellence. This program would
be a continuation involving a partnership with Metro, the City of Kalamazoo, KYD Network and
Kalamazoo Public Schools.

Page-2-0f5



CCTA/KCTA Minutes August 8, 2022

Schultz stated that since 2019 the program has proven to be successful after addressing student
behavior and Covid-19. She explained the schools would manage and adjust the distribution of
the 400-card limit to the students based on need.

Schultz explained Metro would be reimbursed by the Foundation for Excellence (FFE) at a rate
of $1.09 per ride. KYD Network would again work with volunteers to assist students with bus
etiquette and rules and FFE would be reimbursing Metro for 50% of the service contract.

Schultz responded to questions from the Board regarding previous usage, working as a
partnership with other organizations and terms of contract.

A motion was made by KCTA and CCTA to approve a one-year contract for the Youth
Mobility Fund Project with the City of Kalamazoo, Kalamazoo Public Schools and
KYD Network and authorize the Executive Director to execute all documents related to
this contract.

Motion: Thompson Support: Janssen
Motion carried by roll call vole.

Ayes: Aardema, Britigan, Brown, Burns, Janssen, McCormick, Moaiery, Rama,
Thompson, Urban, Rosine

Nays: None

Absent: Breneman, Farmer, Pearson, Sloan

6.) POLICY ON ADVERTISING ON METRO BUSES AND FACILITIES

Planning Development Manager Kathy Schultz provided an overview of the current policy on
advertising on Metro buses and facilities. She said recent discussions by the Board had raised
questions regarding what is allowed on the buses and facilities that was not addressed in the
current policy including: marijuana, tobacco products, weapons/firearms related, gambling and
political.

Schultz indicated the CCTA/KCTA attorney was consulted and reviewed the current policy with
suggested changes and was being offered for first reading. She said it would be brought back to
the Board for final adoption at a future meeting.

Prior to the vote, discussion ensued regarding topics that would now either be allowed or not
allowed as advertising on the buses. Discussion also was had on the feasibility of limiting
competition of the Kalamazoo Airport, which is also a County Authority.

A motion was made by KCTA and CCTA to offer for first reading a Revised Policy on
Advertising on Metro buses and Facilities.

Motion: Brown Support: Aardema
Motion carried by voice vote.

7.) UPDATE REGARDING COMPREHENSIVE OPERATIONAL ANALYSIS (COA)

Planning/Development Manager Kathy Schultz updated the timeline to the Boards on the
progress of the Comprehensive Operational Plan (COA) being performed by Foursquare. Schultz
said staff is working on responses from the community to clarify specific areas including:

Microtransit Zones

Timeline for route changes

Provide information and education to specific neighborhoods
Changes to Metro Connect's ADA services area

Page-3-of 5



CCTA/KCTA Minutes August 8, 2022

Schultz commented that Foursquare would have a draft recommendation for review prior to the
September 26" meeting.

8.) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS REPORT

Exec. Dir. McBride provided information on the following topics:

Human Resources

Outreach

Board Governance Retreat

Michigan Public Transportation Association (MPTA) Conference
KTC Security Reports

City of Kalamazoo Road Construction

City of Kalamazoo Ordinance Changes

Included with the minutes is the summary memo and updates provided to the Boards.

8.) SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS

Executive Subcommittee

Chair Rosine reported the committee met to discuss the current agenda. He shared that the
subcommittee discussed the past several years and the challenges faced and navigated by Metro
with the excellent leadership of the Executive Director. Chair Rosine said they would like to come
back to the Board with a recommendation for a one-time supplement compensation to his income
for the quality work he has exhibited during these challenging times.

Chair Rosine commented that the last meeting had been the Governance Board Retreat with Mr.
Doug Eadie. He said Mr. Eadie was preparing a Draft Action Policy to submit to the Steering
Committee then it would be brought to the full Board for approval and implementation.

Finance Subcommittee (joint with KCTA) — Met to discuss CCTA 2023 and 2024 Budgets.

Qutreach Subcommittee — Did not meet.

Pension Board — Did not meet.

KATS Policy Committee — Janssen reported on current road projects. He added that KATS was
physically riding the area bike trails to add the information to the mapping system. Aardema
noted that KATS was updating the mapping system to include bus stops.

Local Advisory Committee (LAC) — Did not meet.

9.) CHAIRPERSON REPORT - No Report.

10.) PUBLIC COMMENT — Marcy Ohs, Parkview Hills Neighborhood thanked staff at Metro for
the transparency and updates on the Comprehensive Operational Analysis (COA). She spoke to
the potential elimination of the bus route traveling through the interior of Parkview Hills in the
COA. Ohs said a variety of individuals rely on the bus and have mobility issues so traveling the
added distance to Parkview Avenue to catch the bus is prohibitive.

Karen Schmitt, Parkview Hills Neighborhood, reiterated Ohs’ concerns about senior citizens and
the mobility issues of its residents.

Page-4-of 5



CCTA/KCTA Minutes August 8, 2022

Dean Hauck spoke about the necessity of bus transportation for the residents of Parkview Hills.
She said it would affect their quality of life greatly. She also spoke concerning the proposed
transformation of the one-way downtown streets to two-way streets.

Kate Goddeyne spoke on behalf of her client who uses the Parkview bus regularly and relies on
it to maintain a connection to the community and his mental health.

John Gisler asked whether it was possible that delays in receiving new buses could be due to the
war in Ukraine. He understood that they manufactured catalytic converters.

11.) MEMBERS TIME

Aardema shared that, as a member of the Airport Board of Directors, he was excited about the
new airline beginning service for Kalamazoo in October. He, along with other Boardmembers,
thanked the Kalamazoo residents for their involvement in the COA process.

Britigan thanked Exec. Dir. McBride and staff for the excellent Board Governance Retreat held
the previous month. He said it was good for setting the Board up for self-improvement.

McCormick thanked Exec. Dir. McBride and staff for all their hard work and the residents of
Parkview Hills for their comments.

12.) ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by KCTA and CCTA to adjourn the KCTA/CCTA meeting.
Motion: Janssen Support: Aardema
Motion carried by voice vote.

The meeting adjourned at 1:21 P.M.

Greg Rosine Barbara Blissett
CCTA Chairperson CCTA Clerk
Greg Rosine Barbara Blissett
KCTA Chairperson KCTA Clerk

Page-5-0of 5



.
Agenda Item # 4
Meeting Date 09/12/22

A

Connecting People Throughout
Kalamazoo County

TO: CCTA and KCTA Boards

FROM: Sean McBride, Executive Director

DATE: September 12, 2022

SUBJECT: Proposed Fiscal Year 2023 and 2024 Budgets
BACKGROUND

A public hearing for the Fiscal Year 2023 and 2024 Budgets is being held on September 12, 2022, which
allow for the Boards to receive any public comments on the Proposed Budgets. Please note the following
related to the budget adoption process:

a. The Proposed Fiscal year 2023 and 2024 Budgets are attached. The Budget document includes a memo
from the Executive Director that introduces the budgets. There is also detailed information on revenues
and organizational department expenses contained within the budget document.

b. The Proposed Budgets were presented at the August 8" Board Meeting. Included with that meeting
packet, and available on-line at kmetro.com, are the following:

¢ Five-Year Financial Projection

e Covid-19 Relief Funds Summary

e KCTA/CCTA Estimated Allocation Comparison

e Consolidated actual revenue/expenses for multiple past years is available upon request.

c. The Finance Subcommittee met on July 30th to review the proposed budgets.

d. A small group meeting with several boardmembers attending was held on August 18", This meeting
was an opportunity for CCTA/KCTA Boardmembers to ask more detailed questions to staff about the
budgets.

e. Adoption of the budgets can occur after the Public Hearing on September 12" or at the next meeting
scheduled for September 26th.

RECOMMENDATION

The Executive Director recommends Adoption of the CCTA Fiscal Year 2023 and 2024 Budgets.

Attachments:

1. Proposed Fiscal Year 2023 and 2024 Budgets (Provided in a separate link on the website)



=

.
Agenda Item: 5
Meeting Date 09/12/22

Connecting People Throughout
Kalamazoo County

TO: CCTA and KCTA Boards
FROM: Sean McBride, Executive Director

Prepared by: Greg Vlietstra, Director of Support Services
DATE: August 31,2022
SUBJECT: Workers Compensation Insurance Renewal
BACKGROUND

Beginning October 1 of 2016, CCTA became responsible for its own workers compensation coverage
independent from the City of Kalamazoo.

As you may recall, Metro Transit claims experience has historically been higher than other private and
public sector organizations. Beginning in October 2016, with the assistance of Keyser Insurance, Metro
instituted a fresh approach to workers compensation claims that included more prevention on the front
end, enhanced communication with employees, a light-duty program, and better claims management on
the back end. Significant progress in this important area has been made the past three years.

Metro as a new organization in 2016 with no claim’s history independent of the City of Kalamazoo, we
were placed in the Michigan Workers Compensation Placement Facility Assigned Risk Pool. Liberty
Mutual was assigned to us in 2016. Due to reduced claims, better claims management, instituting a light-
duty program, and guidance from our agent of record, Metro was able to procure competitive quotes
outside the Michigan assigned risk pool two years ago. This is an advantage to Metro because it results in
lower rates, higher coverage limits, and more flexibility.

DISCUSSION

Accident Fund has been our carrier the last three years and their customer service and claims process
were efficient and effective. Accident Fund Insurance Company of America, headquartered in Lansing,
has been one of the largest companies in the nation that specializes in workers compensation insurance.

Keyser Insurance, our local agent of record, assisted Metro by procuring a one-year renewal with a
premium cost of $177,918. This is the first year with a premium cost increase since 2018. The proposed
cost when compared to the premium last year is an increase of $46,256, or 35%. However, this is still
$59,479 less than Metro paid in 2018.

The cost increase is attributed to three primary factors. First, our premium is calculated on a rolling cycle
of the past three-years. The year that rolled off the calculation (2018) was a one of very low claims and
therefore no longer benefits our premium cost. Secondly, workers compensation premiums are also based
heavily on estimated and actual payroll figures. Metro has increased payroll hours the past year,
particularly among coach operators, as we are exiting the pandemic. Thirdly, Metro also increased wages
significantly, as part of the ATU collective bargaining agreement that took effect this past February.

RECOMMENDATION
The recommendation is to allow the Executive Director to execute necessary documents to renew Metro

workers compensation coverage with Accident Fund at a cost of $177,918 for coverage from October 1,
2022 through September 30, 2023.




Ny

-
Agenda Item: # 6
Meeting Date: 09/12/22

Connecting People Throughout
Kalamazoo County

TO: CCTA and KCTA Boards
FROM: Sean McBride, Executive Director
Prepared by: Greg Vlietstra, Director of Support Services
DATE: September 6, 2022
SUBJECT: Renewal of Property, Auto, and General Liability Insurance with MMRMA

BACKGROUND

For over the past decade, both the City of Kalamazoo and Metro Transit have relied on the Michigan Municipal
Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) for property, auto, and liability insurance coverage. With the Metro
Transit transition from the City of Kalamazoo to CCTA on October 1, 2016, we are responsible for making sure
we have proper coverage in the event of a potential lawsuit, claim, or a catastrophic loss.

The MMRMA was created by authority granted by the laws of the State of Michigan to provide liability and
property coverage services to eligible Michigan public entities. The CCTA is eligible to be a member of the
MMRMA.

MMRMA was started in 1980 in a marketplace that was becoming increasingly unfriendly to public entities.
Three member municipalities founded MMRMA as a joint purchasing arrangement, which allowed them to
secure necessary insurance coverage at a reasonable price. Within a few years of MMRMA's inception,
commercial insurers either ceased to offer coverage to governmental entities or sharply increased their
premiums. Today, MMRMA is the largest liability and property pool in Michigan and a recognized national
leader in the field (www.mmrma.org).

In light of the very severe bus accident on May 24, 2017, we have put additional emphasis on insurance to
ensure sufficient coverage limits as well as balancing the cost of that coverage. One of the first steps taken was
having our agent of record, Keyser Insurance, competitively seek quotes comparable coverage. There was not
another carrier who could come close to the MMRMA price and scope of coverage.

Another step Metro has taken as part of a more comprehensive review of insurance is to make sure Metro is not
underinsured with the insurance covering our bus fleet in the case of catastrophic event such as a facility fire or
tornado. Metro has also increased the per occurrence vehicle physical damage limit from $1.5 million to
$17 million. The Metro request for this increased per occurrence limit is somewhat unusual and outside the
normal scope of MMRMA coverage. The additional cost of $25,678 is worth the benefit in the case of a
catastrophic event.

DISCUSSION

The annual premium to cover CCTA for property, auto, and general liability insurance, including all vehicles,
through September 30, 2023 is $335,019. This figure is an increase of $16,436 (or 5.2%) compared to last year.
$50,000 of that amount is a self-insured retention deposit from which potential future loss deductibles will be
deducted. The self-insured deposit balance (currently $140,503) will earn an interest rate of 2.49 percent and
is reduced to pay claims expenses.

RECOMMENDATION

The recommendation is to authorize the Executive Director to execute documents to ensure adequate property
and liability insurance coverage with the MMRMA from October 1, 2022 through September 30, 2023 at a cost
of $335,019.




.
Agenda Item: 7
Meeting Date 09/12/22

Connecting People Throughout
Kalamazoo County

TO: CCTA and KCTA Boards
FROM: Sean McBride, Executive Director

Prepared by: Rob Branch, Deputy Director of Fleet & Facilities
DATE: August 31, 2022

SUBJECT:  Hybrid Bus Battery Refresh Kits with Installation

BACKGROUND

For the vehicles in the fixed-route bus fleet that contain hybrid powered technology, the batteries in those
hybrid vehicles have an approximate six-year lifecycle. Of the 14 hybrid vehicles, 3 have batteries that
have exceeded their useful life of six years. To maintain a safe, cost effective, and well-maintained fleet of
vehicles, Metro sought bids for refresh kits for the hybrid bus vehicles.

DISCUSSION
With the assistance of the City of Kalamazoo Purchasing Department, sealed bids were solicited and
opened on August 30, 2022.

W.W. Williams (Grand Rapids, Michigan) was the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. Although
W.W. Williams was the only bidder, the bid amount came in slightly below our budgeted projection.
CCTA maintains a Gillig bus fleet and has bought parts and warranty service work from W.W. Williams for
many years. We are satisfied with the quality, price, and customer service from W.W. Williams.

The refresh includes reconditioned batteries and labor to remove and replace assembly bolts, data tags,
terminals, new relay components, gaskets, and computer software upgrades in the battery compartment.

On-going fleet maintenance is part of the CCTA Capital Program as identified in the Kalamazoo Area
Transportation Study’s (KATS) Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). Funding is available 80%
through a federal grant and 20% through a state grant. No Metro operating funds will be used for this
purchase.

This is a one-time contract. The work will be done off-site, one bus at a time, and will hopefully be
completed by the end of the calendar year.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the CCTA Board approve a contract with W.W. Williams Company for the purchase
of three hybrid bus battery refresh kits with installation at an amount not to exceed $178,603.38 and
authorize the Executive Director to execute all documents related to the action on behalf of Metro.

Attachments:
1. Bid Tabulation



CENTRAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY BID THIS IS NOT AN ORDEF

Bid Opening: August 30, 2022 @ 3:00 p.m. ) ) )
Bid Ref#: 06012-013.0 Hybrid Bus Battery Refresh Kits w/Installation

Opened/Recorded by: Gracia Mason
Attended by: No One

W.W. Williams
DESCRIPTION UNIT [(QT| Unit Price Total

Hybrid Battery Refresh Kit
w/Installation EA [ 3 $59,534.46| $ 178,603.38
TOTAL AMOUNT| $ 178,603.38

Guranteed Start of Project shall be FOB
CCTA 90 days




A

.
Agenda [tem: # 8
Meeting Date 09/12/22

Connecting People Throughout
Kalamazoo County

TO: CCTA and KCTA Boards
FROM: Sean McBride, Executive Director

Prepared by: Keshia Woodson-Sow, Director of Operations
DATE: September 8, 2022

SUBJECT:  Drug and Alcohol Policy

BACKGROUND
The Federal Transportation Administration (FTA) requires that metro have a Drug and Alcohol Policy and
Program in place to maintain a drug-free workplace. Grantees that receive federal funds that have safety

sensitive employees must have a drug and alcohol testing program. This program must be compliant with
49 CFR Part 40 and Part 655.

In March 2022, The Director of Operations and the Human Resource Manager attended Substance Abuse
Management and Compliance Training in El Paso, Texas. During the training, Metro’s current drug and
alcohol policy was reviewed. Instructors and the FTA auditor advised that Metro make some updates to the
policy for it to be very understandable for Metro employees and help with compliance and oversight.

DISCUSSION

In April 2022, a team of managers began reviewing the policy for compliance. During this time, we partnered
with the FTA Drug and Alcohol Division, Audit division and Department of Transportation, Transportation
Safety Institute for the policy creation and review.

Under the Code of Federal Regulations, 49 CFR Part 40 and Part 655, require that the grantees policy meet
the requirements listed below:

° Negative Dilute test results require a retest.
J Covered employees should include all safety sensitive employees under these five categories:
o  Operating a revenue service vehicle in or out of revenue service
o  Operating a non-revenue vehicle requiring a commercial driver’s license
o Controlling movement or dispatch of a revenue service vehicle
o  Maintaining (including repairs, overhaul, and rebuilding) of a revenue service vehicle or
equipment used in revenue service
o  Carrying a firearm for security purposes

Changes were made to the structure and training of the Drug and Alcohol Program for all safety-sensitive
employees. The policy was reviewed by the FTA Drug and Alcohol Auditors in which they found zero
findings for improvement to the new policy.

The policy update was reviewed with Amalgamated Transit Union (ATU) leadership and included
discussions on impacted employees, review of the policy, and understanding of the changes that were being
made. The changes and update to the policy will be provided to all safety sensitive employees during
mandatory training in September 2022.

Non-Safety Sensitive employees will continue to adhere to Metro’s Employee Handbook. Changes to this
policy will not affect those in non-safety sensitive positions.



Memo re: Drug and Alcohol Policy
Date: September 8, 2022
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Central County Transportation Authority approve the adoption of Metro’s Safety
Sensitive Employee Drug and Alcohol Policy.

ATTACHMENT
1. Metro Drug and Alcohol Policy for Safety Sensitive Employees



FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy — Metro

METRO

Drug and Alcohol Policy

for Safety Sensitive
Employees

Effective as of [mm/dd/yyyy]

Adopted by: Date Adopted:  [dd/mm/yyyy]

Page 10f13



FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy — Metro

Last Revised: [dd/mm/yyyy]

Table of Contents

1. Pt DS O PO CY s rserrosivrssassssms s ooy Saaids s e S S A A e S S S R T e T s 3
2. (800} F=Y =0 I =g gF o] oY T o ORI 3
3. o) a1 o TE=To 2 T=] 4 =LY T | O O O O R SR 4
4, (001 4 14=To [N]=T g Lol =k o] g VATa ] =1 o o L OSSPSR 4
5. CircumMSTANCES FOr TESTING covvecvieiiiire e iree e e ree st e s e s e e s s s n s bee s sbe s ae e s sbe s st s e s saneeas 5
6. =TT = o o Yot =T LT =S T 7
T TOSE ROIUSAISu s vomswurmvaimmnmmsasminnvs o o ovss s o eirs e s Ko Faa 4SS sy Sl B s e SN SA AN 8
8. Voluntary SeH-RETBrTal .. s ominsssaiis s o v o sosmiiss o s s e s as o 8
9. Prescription DIUE WS i rmsmmvemssumrer s vhss iaesess v mss e -5u s s s v s i s s svde iad evave s b 9
1 O | [ = o ) T TR — 9
Attachment A: Coverad POSTHONS v ciumiimmainiusisn isbonssasiassssstis s35iss 56518 05465 081 HAFEO 7T oY s iamaing sss 10

Attachment B DEfiNItians i ety s i o it Gty et sl b

Page 2 of 13



FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy — Metro

|. Purpose of Policy

This policy complies with 49 CFR Part 655, as amended and 49 CFR Part 40, as amended. Copies of
Parts 655 and 40 are available in the drug and alcohol program manager’s office and can be found on the
internet at the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Drug and Alcohol Program website

http:/transit-safety.fta.dot.gov/DrugAndAlcohol/.

All covered employees are required to submit to drug and alcohol tests as a condition of employment in
accordance with 49 CFR Part 655.

Portions of this policy are not FTA-mandated but reflect Central County Transportation Authority,
hereinafter, “Metro’s” policy. These additional provisions are identified by bold text.

In addition, DOT has published 49 CFR Part 32, implementing the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988,
which requires the establishment of drug-free workplace policies and the reporting of certain drug-related
offenses to the FTA.

All Metro employees are subject to the provisions of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988.

The unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is
prohibited in the covered workplace. An employee who is convicted of any criminal drug statute for
a violation occurring in the workplace shall notify Keshia Woodson-Sow no later than five days
after such conviction.

2. Covered Employees

This policy applies to every person, including an applicant or transferee, who performs or will perform a
“safety-sensitive function” as defined in Part 655, section 655.4.

You are a covered employee if you perform any of the following:

e Operating a revenue service vehicle, in or out of revenue service

e Operating a non-revenue vehicle requiring a commercial driver’s license

¢ Controlling movement or dispatch of a revenue service vehicle

e Maintaining (including repairs, overhaul, and rebuilding) of a revenue service vehicle or
equipment used in revenue service

e Carrying a firearm for security purposes

See Attachment A for a list of covered positions by job title.

Page 3 of 13



FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy — Metro

3. Prohibited Behavior

Use of illegal drugs is prohibited at all times.
Prohibited drugs include:

s marijuana

e cocaine
e phencyclidine (PCP)
e opioids

e amphetamines

All covered employees are prohibited from performing, or continuing to perform, safety-sensitive
functions while having an alcohol concentration of 0.04 or greater.

All covered employees are prohibited from consuming alcohol while performing safety-sensitive job
functions or while on-call to perform safety-sensitive job functions. If an on-call employee has consumed
alcohol, they must acknowledge the use of alcohol at the time that they are called to report for duty. If the
on-call employee claims the ability to perform his or her safety-sensitive function, he or she must take an
alcohol test with a result of less than 0.02 prior to performance.

All covered employees are prohibited from consuming alcohol within four (4) hours prior to the
performance of safety-sensitive job functions.

All covered employees required to take a post-accident test are prohibited from consuming alcohol for
eight (8) hours following involvement in an accident or until he or she submits to the post-accident drug
and alcohol test, whichever occurs first.

4. Consequences for Violations

Following a positive drug or alcohol (BAC at or above 0.04) test result, or test refusal, the employee will
be immediately removed from safety-sensitive duty and referred to a Substance Abuse Professional.

Following a BAC of 0.02 or greater, but less than 0.04, the employee will be immediately removed from
safety-sensitive duties until the start of their next regularly scheduled duty period (but for not less than
eight hours) unless a retest results in the employee’s alcohol concentration being less than 0.02.

Treatment/Discipline

Any employee who tests positive for drugs or alcohol (BAC at or above 0.04) will be immediately
removed from safety sensitive duty and will utilize any paid leave available while completing the
appropriate treatment with a Substance Abuse Professional. Treatment by a substance abuse
professional is at the employee’s expense.

Following a positive drug or alcohol test (BAC at or above 0.04) for a second time will be grounds for
immediate termination.

Page 4 of 13



FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy — Metro

Following a test refusal, the employee will be removed from safety-sensitive duty and will face
immediate termination.

5. Circumstances for Testing

Pre-Employment Testing

A negative pre-employment drug test result is required before an employee can first perform safety-
sensitive functions. If a pre-employment test is cancelled, the individual will be required to undergo
another test and successfully pass with a verified negative result before performing safety-sensitive
functions.

If a covered employee has not performed a safety-sensitive function for 90 or more consecutive calendar
days and has not been in the random testing pool during that time, the employee must take and pass a pre-
employment test before he or she can return to a safety-sensitive function.

A covered employee or applicant who has previously failed or refused a DOT pre-employment drug
and/or alcohol test must provide proof of having successfully completed a referral, evaluation, and
treatment plan meeting DOT requirements.

Reasonable Suspicion Testing

All covered employees shall be subject to a drug and/or alcohol test when Metro has reasonable suspicion
to believe that the covered employee has used a prohibited drug and/or engaged in alcohol misuse. A
reasonable suspicion referral for testing will be made by a trained supervisor or other trained company
official on the basis of specific, contemporaneous, articulable observations concerning the appearance,
behavior, speech, or body odors of the covered employee.

Covered employees may be subject to reasonable suspicion drug testing any time while on duty. Covered
employees may be subject to reasonable suspicion alcohol testing while the employee is performing
safety-sensitive functions, just before the employee is to perform safety-sensitive functions, or just after
the employee has ceased performing such functions.

Post-Accident Testing

Covered employees shall be subject to post-accident drug and alcohol testing under the following
circumstances:

Fatal Accidents

As soon as practicable following an accident involving the loss of a human life, drug and alcohol
tests will be conducted on each surviving covered employee operating the public transportation
vehicle at the time of the accident. In addition, any other covered employee whose performance

Page 5 of 13



FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy — Metro

could have contributed to the accident, as determined by Metro using the best information
available at the time of the decision, will be tested.

Non-fatal Accidents

As soon as practicable following an accident not involving the loss of a human life, drug and
alcohol tests will be conducted on each covered employee operating the public transportation
vehicle at the time of the accident if at least one of the following conditions is met:

(1) The accident results in injuries requiring immediate medical treatment away from the
scene, unless the covered employee can be completely discounted as a contributing
factor to the accident

(2) One or more vehicles incurs disabling damage and must be towed away from the
scene, unless the covered employee can be completely discounted as a contributing
factor to the accident

In addition, any other covered employee whose performance could have contributed to the
accident, as determined by Metro using the best information available at the time of the decision,
will be tested.

A covered employee subject to post-accident testing must remain readily available, or it is considered a
refusal to test. Nothing in this section shall be construed to require the delay of necessary medical
attention for the injured following an accident or to prohibit a covered employee from leaving the
scene of an accident for the period necessary to obtain assistance in responding to the accident or to
obtain necessary emergency medical care.

Random Testing

Random drug and alcohol tests are unannounced and unpredictable, and the dates for administering
random tests are spread reasonably throughout the calendar year. Random testing will be conducted at all
times of the day when safety-sensitive functions are performed.

Testing rates will meet or exceed the minimum annual percentage rate set each year by the FTA
administrator. The current year testing rates can be viewed online at
www.transportation.gov/odapc/random-testing-rates.

The selection of employees for random drug and alcohol testing will be made by a scientifically valid
method, such as a random number table or a computer-based random number generator. Under the
selection process used, each covered employee will have an equal chance of being tested each time
selections are made.

A covered employee may only be randomly tested for alcohol misuse while the employee is performing
safety-sensitive functions, just before the employee is to perform safety-sensitive functions, or just after
the employee has ceased performing such functions. A covered employee may be randomly tested for
prohibited drug use anytime while on duty.

Page 6 of 13



FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy — Metro

Each covered employee who is notified of selection for random drug or random alcohol testing must
immediately proceed to the designated testing site.

Return to Duty Testing

Any employee who is allowed to return to safety-sensitive duty after failing or refusing to submit to a
DOT drug and/or alcohol test must first be evaluated by a substance abuse professional (SAP), complete a
SAP-required program of education and/or treatment, and provide a negative return-to-duty drug test
result and/or an alcohol test result of less than 0.02. Any return-to-duty drug testing will be directly
observed. All tests will be conducted in accordance with 49 CFR Part 40, Subpart O.

Follow-up Testing

Employees returning to safety-sensitive duty following a return-to-duty test will be required to undergo
unannounced follow-up alcohol and/or drug testing for a period of one (1) to five (5) years, as directed by
the SAP. The duration of testing will be extended to account for any subsequent leaves of absence, as
necessary. The type (drug and/or alcohol), number, and frequency of such follow-up testing shall be
directed by the SAP.

A covered employee may only be subject to follow-up alcohol testing while the employee is performing
safety-sensitive functions, just before the employee is to perform safety-sensitive functions, or just after
the employee has ceased performing such functions. A covered employee may be subject to follow-up
drug testing anytime while on duty. All follow-up drug tests will be directly observed. All testing will be
conducted in accordance with 49 CFR Part 40, Subpart O.

6. Testing Procedures

Al FTA drug and alcohol testing will be conducted in accordance with 49 CFR Part 40, as amended.

Dilute Urine Specimen
If there is a negative dilute test result, Metro will conduct one additional retest. The result of the second

test will be the test of record.

Dilute negative results with a creatinine level greater than or equal to 2 mg/dL but less than or equal to 5
mg/dL require an immediate recollection under direct observation (see 49 CFR Part 40, section 40.67).

Split Specimen Test

In the event of a verified positive test result, or a verified adulterated or substituted result, the employee
can request that the split specimen be tested at a second laboratory. Metro guarantees that the split
specimen test will be conducted in a timely fashion.

Page 7 of 13



FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy — Metro

7. Test Refusals

As a covered employee, you have refused to test if you:

(1) Fail to appear for any test (except a pre-employment test) within a reasonable time, as
determined by Central County Transportation Authority - Metro.

(2) Fail to remain at the testing site until the testing process is complete. An employee who leaves
the testing site before the testing process commences for a pre-employment test has not refused
to test.

(3) Fail to attempt to provide a breath or urine specimen. An employee who does not provide a
urine or breath specimen because he or she has left the testing site before the testing process
commenced for a pre-employment test has not refused to test.

(4) Inthe case of a directly observed or monitored urine drug collection, fail to permit monitoring
or observation of your provision of a specimen.

(5) Fail to provide a sufficient quantity of urine or breath without a valid medical explanation.

(6) Fail or decline to take a second test as directed by the collector or Metro for drug testing.

(7) Fail to undergo a medical evaluation as required by the MRO or Central County Transportation
Authority - Metro’s Designated Employer Representative (DER).

(8) Fail to cooperate with any part of the testing process.

(9) Fail to follow an observer’s instructions to raise and lower clothing and turn around during a
directly observed test.

(10) Possess or wear a prosthetic or other device used to tamper with the collection process.

(11) Admit to the adulteration or substitution of a specimen to the collector or MRO.

(12) Refuse to sign the certification at Step 2 of the Alcohol Testing Form (ATF).

(13) Fail to remain readily available following an accident.

As a covered employee, if the MRO reports that you have a verified adulterated or substituted test result,
you have refused to take a drug test.

As a covered employee, if you refuse to take a drug and/or alcohol test, you incur the same consequences
as testing positive and will be immediately removed from performing safety-sensitive functions, and
referred to a SAP.

8. Voluntary Self-Referral

Any employee who has a drug and/or alcohol abuse problem and has not been notified of the
requirement to submit to reasonable suspicion, random or post-accident testing or has not refused a
drug or alcohol test may voluntarily refer her or himself to the Drug and Alcohol Compliance
Manager- Keshia Woodson-Sow, who will refer the individual to a substance abuse counselor for
evaluation and treatment.

Page 8 of 13



FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy — Metro

The substance abuse counselor will evaluate the employee and make a specific recommendation
regarding the appropriate treatment. Employees are encouraged to voluntarily seek professional
substance abuse assistance before any substance use or dependence affects job performance.

Any safety-sensitive employee who admits to a drug and/or alcohol problem will immediately be
removed from his/her safety-sensitive function and will not be allowed to perform such function
until successful completion of a prescribed rehabilitation program.

9. Prescription Drug Use

The appropriate use of legally prescribed drugs and non-prescription medications is not prohibited.
However, the use of any substance which carries a warning label that indicates that mental
functioning, motor skills, or judgment may be adversely affected must be reported to the Drug and
Alcohol Program Manager (See Contact information below). Medical advice should be sought, as
appropriate, while taking such medication and before performing safety-sensitive duties.

|0. Contact Person

For questions about Central County Transportation Authority - Metro’s anti-drug and alcohol misuse
program, contact the representative for your department at the phone number listed below.

Keshia Woodson-Sow

Director of Operations

530 North Rose Street

Kalamazoo, MI 49007
269-337-8069

Drug and Alcohol Program Manager

Cindy DeYoung

Human Resource Manager

530 North Rose Street

Kalamazoo, MI 49007

269-337-8421

Designated Employer Representative-
Pre-Employment

Terecita Potts

Senior Operations Supervisor

530 North Rose Street

Kalamazoo, MI 49007

269-337-8427

Designated Employer Representative- Operations
Department

Steve Markus

Maintenance Supervisor

530 North Rose Street

Kalamazoo, MI 49007

269-337-8752

Designated Employer Representative- Maintenance
Department

Page 9 of 13



FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy — Metro

Attachment A: Covered Positions

Operating a revenue service vehicle, in or out of revenue service.

This category applies to all coach operators and the service lane attendant position.
Operating a non-revenue vehicle requiring a commercial driver’s license.

No position meets this qualification.
Controlling movement or dispatch of a revenue service vehicle.

This category applies to all Senior Operations Supervisors, Operations Supervisors, Safety and
Security Manager, and Operations Support Specialist.

Maintaining (including repairs, overhaul, and rebuilding) of a revenue service vehicle or
equipment used in revenue service.

This category applies all mechanics (Master, A, B, and C levels), Maintenance Supervisors,
Deputy Director of Fleet and Facilities, and the Utility Worker.

Carrying a firearm for security purposes.

No position meets this qualification.

Page 10 of 13



FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy — Metro

Attachment B: Definitions

Adulterated Specimen: A specimen that has been altered, as evidenced by test results showing
either a substance that is not a normal constituent for that type of specimen or showing an
abnormal concentration of an endogenous substance. Page 7

Alcohol: Intoxicating agent in beverage alcohol, ethyl alcohol, or other low molecular weight
alcohols including methyl and isopropyl alcohol. Page 4

Alcohol Concentration (Or Content): Alcohol in a volume of breath expressed in terms of
grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath as indicated by an evidential breath test performed.
Page 4

Alcohol Use: Consumption of any beverage, mixture, or preparation, including any medication,
containing alcohol.

Chain of Custody: The procedure used to document the handling of the urine specimen from the
time the employee gives the specimen to the collector until the specimen is destroyed. This
procedure uses the Federal Drug Testing Custody and Control Form (CCF) as approved by the
Office of Management and Budget.

Collection Container: A container into which the employee urinates to provide the urine sample
used for a drug test.

Collection Site: A place selected by the employer where employees present themselves for the
purpose of providing a urine specimen for a drug test.

Collector: A person who instructs and assists employees at a collection site, who receives and
makes an initial inspection of the specimen provided by those employees, and who initiates and
completes the CCF.

Confirmed Drug Test: A confirmation test result received by an MRO from a laboratory.

Consortium/Third Party Administrator (C/TPA): A service agent that provides or
coordinates the provision of a variety of drug and alcohol testing services to employers. C/TPA’s
typically perform administrative tasks concerning the operation of the employers’ drug and
alcohol testing programs. This term includes, but is not limited to, groups of employers who join
to administer, as a single entity, the DOT drug and alcohol testing programs of its members.
C/TPAs are not “employers” for purposes of this part. Page 6

Designated Employer Representative (DER): An employee authorized by the employer to take
immediate action(s) to remove employees from safety-sensitive duties, or cause employees to be
removed from these covered duties, and to make required decisions in the testing and evaluation

Page 11 of 13



FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy — Metro

processes. The DER also receives test results and other communications for the employer,
consistent with the requirements of this part. Service agents cannot act as DERs. Page 9

Dilute Specimen: A urine specimen with creatinine and specific gravity values that are lower
than expected for human urine. Page 7

Disabling Damage: Damage that precludes departure of any vehicle from the scene of the
occurrence in its usual manner in daylight after simple repairs. Disabling damage includes
damage to vehicles that could have been operated but would have been further damaged if so
operated.

Disabling damage does not include damage that could be remedied temporarily at the scene of the
occurrence without special tools or parts; tire disablement without other damage even if no spare
tire is available; or damage to headlights, taillights turn signals, horn, or windshield wipers that
makes them inoperative. Page 6

DOT: The United States Department of Transportation Page 3

DOT Agency: An agency (or “operating administration”) of the United States Department of
Transportation administering regulations requiring drug and/or alcohol testing. Page 3

Drugs: The drugs for which tests are required under this part and DOT agency regulations are
marijuana, cocaine, amphetamines, phencyclidine (PCP), and opioids. Page 3

Employee: Any person who is designated in a DOT agency regulation as subject to drug testing
and/or alcohol testing. The term includes individuals currently performing safety-sensitive
functions designated in DOT agency regulations and applicants for employment subject to pre-
employment testing. For purposes of drug testing under this part, the term employee has the
same meaning as the term “donor” as found on CCF and related guidance materials produced by
the Department of Health and Human Services. Page 3

Employer: A recipient or other entity that provides mass transportation service or which
performs a safety-sensitive function for such recipient or other entity. This term includes
subrecipients, operators, and contractors.

FTA: The Federal Transit Administration, an agency of the U.S. Department of Transportation.
Page 3

Large Operator: A recipient or subrecipient primarily operating in an area of 200,000 or more
in population.

Medical Review Officer (MRO): A person who is a licensed physician and who is responsible
for receiving and reviewing laboratory results generated by an employer’s drug testing program
and evaluating medical explanations for certain drug test results. Page 8

Page 12 of 13



FTA Drug and Alcohol Policy — Metro

Negative Result: The result reported by an HHS-certified laboratory to an MRO when a
specimen contains no drug or the concentration of the drug is less than the cutoff concentration
for the drug or drug class and the specimen is a valid specimen. Page 5

Primary Specimen: In drug testing, the urine specimen bottle that is opened and tested by a first
laboratory to determine whether the employee has a drug or drug metabolite in his or her system;
and for the purpose of validity testing. The primary specimen is distinguished from the split
specimen, defined in this section. Page 7

Positive Result: The result reported by an HHS-certified laboratory when a specimen contains a
drug or drug metabolite equal to or greater than the cutoff concentrations. Page 4

Reconfirmed: The result reported for a split specimen when the second laboratory is able to
corroborate the original result reported for the primary specimen. Page 7

Small Operator: A recipient or subrecipient primarily operating in an area of less than 200,000
in population.

Specimen Bottle: The bottle that, after being sealed and labeled according to the procedures in
49 CFR Part 40, is used to hold the urine specimen during transportation to the laboratory.

Split Specimen: In drug testing, a part of the urine specimen that is sent to a first laboratory and
retained unopened, and which is transported to a second laboratory in the event that the
employee requests that it be tested following a verified positive test of the primary specimen or a
verified adulterated or substituted test result. Page 7

Split Specimen Collection: A collection in which the urine collected is divided into two
separate specimen bottles, the primary specimen (Bottle A) and the split specimen (Bottle B).

Substance Abuse Professional (SAP): A person who evaluates employees who have violated a
DOT drug and alcohol regulation and makes recommendations concerning education, treatment,
follow-up testing, and aftercare. Page 4

Vehicle: A bus, electric bus, van, automobile, rail car, trolley car, trolley bus, or vessel. A “mass
transit vehicle” is a vehicle used for mass transportation. Page 3

Verified Test: A drug test result or validity testing result from an HHS-certified laboratory that
has undergone review and final determination by the MRO. Page 8

Page 13 of 13



-
Agenda Item: # 8
Meeting Date: 09/12/22

Connecting People Throughout
Kalamazoo County

TO: CCTA and KCTA Boards
FROM: Sean McBride, Executive Director
DATE: September 1, 2022

SUBJECT: Executive Director Update

Human Resources
Five new Coach Operators started a training class on August 22nd. There are 7 additional Coach
Operators candidates that are planning to start the next training class on September 19"

Michael Clark was promoted to Operations Support Specialist. This position works with many of the
technical components of the Operations Department. Michael was most recently an Operations
Supervisor.

Training

Metro participated in a joint training drill with Kalamazoo Department of Public Safety and other law
enforcement agencies. The drill’s focus was responding to a hostage situation on a Metro bus. This
drill supports Metro’s focus on enhancing safety and security.

Comprehensive Operational Analysis

Staff is working to complete information for Foursquare as we approach the week of September 26"
where the consultant will be in Kalamazoo to present the recommendations for the Comprehensive
Operational Analysis. Public meetings that have been established for that week include:

September 26
11:30-1:30 CCTA/KCTA Board Presentation
3:30-5/ 6-7:30 Public Open Houses to be held at Metro

September 27
12:00-2:00 Stakeholder Meeting
QOutreach
Date Event
8/30/22 WMU Bronco Bash
9/7, 9/8, 9/13/22 KVCC Vibe Fest
9/9/22 Southwest Michigan First, First & Foremost: (McBride on
Transportation Panel)
0/25/22 Parkview Hills Block Party
9/30/22 Stand Down at Salvation Army
10/12/22 Project Connect at Kalamazoo Expo Center

In addition, the Executive Director is participating on the Downtown Events Center Stakeholder
sessions led by Discover Kalamazoo and Southwest Michigan First.



Memo: Executive Director Update
September 1, 2022
Page 2

Board Governance Retreat

Mr. Eadie, based on the exercises and discussion at the retreat, developed an Action Report Outline.
The Governance Steering Committee reviewed the outline at a meeting on August 29th. Key areas of
action include: 1) Affirm commitment to high-impact governance; 2) Update governing structure; 3)
Systematically and continuously develop capacity and accountability of Boards; 4) Strengthen
boardmember engagement through standing committees; and, 5) Ensure a positive and productive
Board-Executive Director Partnership. A detailed report and action plan is under development and will
be presented to Boards likely at the November meeting.

KTC Security Reports

Attached is the August Security Report from Naomi Jones, Operations Supervisor. In addition, staff is
working on additional summary information. Following is a chart that tracks incident reporting
generated by our security firm — Security Plus.

2022 Security Summary

| T B

CALLS TO KDPS FIGHTS DRUG ACTIVITIES INJURIES EMS TRANSPORTS

mJanuary mFebruary mMarch ©Aprii mMay mlune EJuly mAugust mSeptember mEOctober EMNovember B December

Attachments
1. Metro’s KTC August Security Reports



August 2022 KTC Security Report
Prepared by: Naomi Jones
Title: Operations Supervisor

Overview:

During the month of August, the calls to KDPS and EMT transports remain high. Security Plus presented a
presence with continuous monitoring throughout the day in the bus bays, Amtrak, and the facility. KDPS
presence remained consistent for the month of August, making frequent trips through the facility.

Activity Summary for August

KPS Calls —

e 8/1—trespasser

e 8/2—stolen bags

e 8/3 - trespasser

e 8/3 —Soiled passenger refusing to exit bus

s 8/3 — Couple causing a disturbance on the bus

e 8/3 —injured man from gunshot

e 8/3 —man jumped in front of Amtrak while at the station

e 8/4—drug use in the men’s bathroom

e 8/5—trespasser

e 8/8 —men arguing (getting ready to fight)

e 8/9 - using the bathroom outside

e 8/9 —drug activity

e 8/9-man passed out in the bathroom

e 8/10 — man using profanity towards people riding the bus

e B/13 —couple was causing problems and refused to leave KTC

e 8/15 — Miller Bus driver requested a rude and threatening passenger to be removed
e 8/15-Women washing up in the bathroom was removed from the premises
e 8/17 —male reported a stolen credit card

e 8/20 - passenger was removed for causing problems on the bus

EMS Calls -

e 8/3 -Soiled passenger

e 8/3 - unresponsive man lying on the ground

e 8/5—woman having a seizure

e 8/8 - intoxicated woman

e 8/9—man passed out on the bus

e 8/10 — man needing assistance he could not walk
e 8/11 —lady was passed out in the grass at KTC

e 8/14 —male requested EMT

e 8/22 - male having problem breathing



August 2022 KTC Security Report
Page 2

e 8/23 —male having chest pains

e 8/26 — lady walking spraying some form of liquid in another lady’s face

e 8/26 — male pulled a knife out on the #14 West Main bus

e 8/26 — KDPS showed up to talk with intoxicated male that was kicked off the train
e 8/27 - fight broke out on #10 Comstock

e 8/29 —situation on the Miller Bus

e 8/31-KDPS showed up for someone who called about an incident at MLK park

Other Activities
8/11 — Homeland Security arrived and was observing activities at the KTC.

8/24 — A male laying on the ground in front of the bus wanting to die, security talked with the gentleman and
asked him if he needed help. He refused but they were able to get him from off the ground.

Walk around the administration building and check all doors are secure and check for loiterers, open intoxicants,
marijuana use or individuals using/attempting to use drugs, sleepers and individuals trespassing. Walk the KTC
staff to and from there vehicles.

Over site of passengers entering KTC building, boarding Amtrak, Greyhound & Indian Trails along with our inter-
city bus arrivals & departures, directing passengers to the proper smoking areas making sure to enforce all rules
of conduct.



A

.
Agenda [tem: # 9a
Meeting Date: 09/12/22

Connecting People Throughout
Kalamazoo County

TO: CCTA and KCTA Boards
FROM: Sean McBride, Executive Director

Prepared By: Cheryl Pesti, Budget and Accounting Manager
DATE: August 22, 2022

SUBJECT:  July 2022 Income & Expense Statement

BACKGROUND
The Income and Expense Statement is an internal document which is used to measure the CCTA’s financial
performance. The budget is used as a comparison for perspective.

We are currently within budget.

Some areas to highlight:

e Both the urban millage (CCTA) and county-wide millage (KCTA) are due in February and
September. At this point we have collected $3,093,975 (41%) of the FY22 millage.

e  We have collected $1,765,940 (68% of the budgeted amount) in fares for this year

e The FTA operating assistance revenue is accrued at the end of the year (September). To date, we
have requested $8,000,000 in CARES funds (2020-$1,500,000; 2021-$4,500,000;, 2022-
$2,000,000).

e The average price for a gallon of diesel fuel in July 2021 was $2.20 and in July 2022, it was $4.39.
This is a 100% increase.

e  Total operating expenditures for Metro year-to-date are 67% of the total budgeted amount.

Attachment:
1. July 2022 Income & Expense Statement



A

4
FY2022
CCTA Board Year to Monthly
Recommended July Year to Date Date Funding
Budget 2022 FY 2022 % %
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENSE 83%
Operating Revenue
Fare Revenue
Regular Route Cash 566,500 47 977 441,014 78% 5%
Metro County Connect Fares 187,117 35,459 182,588 98% 4%
Specialized Services Fares
Metro County Connect - Access Fares 147,686 17,996 164,417 111% 2%
Tokens 259,875 20,756 172,094 66% 2%
Pass Sales 200,310 18,555 164,510 B82% 2%
WMU Prepaid Fares 1,150,000 0 575,000 50% 0%
Texas Twp/KVCC Prepaid Fares 87,565 22,106 66,318 76% 2%
2,599,053 162,849 1,765,940 68% 18%
Other Revenue
Advertising 120,200 5,000 61,295 51% 1%
ntermodal Operations 136,000 47,183 136,834 101% 5%
Miscellaneous Revenue 22,800 2,607 115,090 505% 0%
Commission Revenue - Ticket Sales 20,000 2,639 17,320 B87% 0%
Interest Income 7,500 630 5,038 67% 0%
306,500 58,059 335,576 109% 6%
Urban Millage (CCTA) 4,589,014 12,314 1,514,527 33% 1%
County-wide Millage (KCTA) 3,003,310 4,881 1,579,447 53% 1%
MDOT - Operating 5,013,610 430,883 4,292,851 86% 47%
FTA - Operating 4,147,774 0 2,018,998 49% 0%
Provision for Depreciation 3,200,000 247,728 2,531,635 79% 27%
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 22,859,261 916,715 14,038,876 61% 100%
Operating Expenses by Division
Administration/Overhead 7,217,341 371,750 3,874,932 54%
Kalamazoo Transportation Center Operations 783,839 53,566 581,274 74%
Maintenance 3,188,711 198,358 2,402,107 75%
Operations 7,467,798 545,577 5,249,456 70%
Metro Connect 4,832,897 403,420 3,596,403 74%
Metro Share 63,642 3,373 38,865 61%
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE 23,554,228 1,576,044 15,743,036 67%
NET (UNFUNDED) BALANCE for period (694,967) (659,329) (1.704,161)
July 2022

10f1



METRO

Connecting People Throughout

Kalamazoo County

Agenda Item: #9b
Meeting Date: 09/12/22

TO: Central County Transportation Authority and Kalamazoo County Transportation Authority

FROM:

Sean McBride, Executive Director

Prepared By: Kathy Schultz, Planning and Development Manager

DATE:
SUBJECT:

September 8, 2022
July 2022 Information Summary Report

The following is being provided to the Central County Transportation Authority and Kalamazoo County
Transportation Authority boards as an information item.

BACKGROUND
Monthly Ridership

Bus Metro Connect Metro Share System Total
FY22 108,641 9,179 2,432 120,252
FY21 111,485 8,669 1,235 121,389
Difference -2,844 +510 +1,197 -60
% Change -2.55% +5.88% +96.92% -.94%

Year-to-Date Ridership

Oct 21-Sept 22

Bus Metro Connect Metro Share System Total
FY22 1,103,605 92,768 14,837 1,212,696
FY21 1,157,859 69,832 2,980 1,230,947
Difference -54.254 +22,936 +11,857 -18,251
% Change -4.69% +32.84% +397.89% -1.48%

WHEELCHAIR LIFT/RAMP INCIDENT REPORT — July 2022

Passengers in mobility devices for the month of July 2022 were 673. There were no incidents that involved

a ramp/lift during this month.

WMU STUDENT RIDERSHIP REPORT — July 2022

For the month of July 2022 there were 12,401 passenger trips for WMU.

DEMAND/RESPONSE MONTHLY SUMMARY REPORT - July 2022
For the month of July 2022 there were 9,179 passenger trips on Metro Connect. This is a total of 92,768
passenger trips for fiscal year 2022.




%00°0 Wlvh %00°0 RIGOW LN

SE0'6 %0109 69¥'L sayig

BVS'€ %vZ LS £49 IEIEEET

19619t |%00'0 LLo'ey SIajsuelL

ESP'E %00°0 102 DO

66E22C__ |%00°0 NIAM

aseaioap 0 ZZAd esealoap = i ejeqd Joylo
| @seaidu| mﬂn_m MO % | @sealau| saply jo #
2)e( 0} lea ) Oumm 0] yjuoy

[%evi-___ |iime0gen] 969°2iz'L [%tz 0k [2L6 [ize [ %veo-_Jesc'izk | zszozk Sa21MaS [ejoL

[ viN__ e 0 [ win__ Jooo [o [ wnN | siapeyd)

[%68'26€ Le8'v)L  |%ie'ey  [o0'kL XD | %2698 ] soleg pazijepads|

%81 6€ rLe %2 0. 80¥'8E %LET 8L 88k %zZr 6L I6L'E 8.8 sdil vay

%SE 0F (%3 %v8ZE 89126 %920 £8'} £8'l %88°S BLL'6 esuodsey-puEwaq

joauucg fjuno) osa|

%81 L €551 Zv'vh %69V BS8LGLL | S09'E0L'L |%LLSl-  [eLwb Wzh %552 Sgv'LLL | bv9'80L 3jnoy pexid [EoL]
5 000 vv'6 E = 8Zy 3 000 - %000 0 0 alnus NWM| L€/0€
%leee-__ |e09 Z9¥ %Vl 1e- | 6PLIC 82991 %EZ8ZL__ 881 B ¥ %S92vl | 8yl 518°) souswoy yse3| /g
%968L-___|LLL 0E'9 %ZY 9L z88'9z L9v'ee %v8LvS |80 'S %V9€.G | DEE gz e enua) 1Isep| o2
E 000 IZEl %L 0SE | LsLeh 0Lvis |- 000 69'1 %lE89- | 2lee 96. mamied| oz
%1105 |vb6 ZLEL %¥S 19 GZL'6 velez |- 000 000 = 0 0 spekejeiiepusy/uoos| 1z
5 000 E6 L1 %909tL | GLL6 0z98___| 000 ZET %618~ | 66£€ 519 Bud| 6l
%6691 9z'9l 2061 %1E6E TYEvL 89S'C0L__ |%6VSL- 9601 EEbL %0L LY 856'9 8186 [Eh D
%ISve-___ |vb ok LLZl %0809~ | #5895 682'¢C %2069 |¥99 Z il %EE 6 £zl 69V'e uosiejed| ol
%zl 9z-___|L6'Ze €691 %SE 6 001'v8 £96'L6 %815z~ |s8ee 0Ll %L ET VLE'® 16S°LL uewissm| vl
Yot v 80°L} ZE ol %GL2e- | 08LLL 05509 %Svy'62-___ 8602 087l %09vz-__ | G098 88¥'9 ¥oping nog| ¢l
E 000 9y L %82 2806 __| €L v.6'8 = 000 SE¥ 3 0 zzs angl __ zi
%86k |e8 8k BEOL %EQ0L- | prp'89 eI %SV [6LLL 162l %bY 6L 170°L 2L9'S onug wnipeis| 1L
%EL 1T |68 bk 1E6 %B8S6L-___ | cecer 99L'vE %zZv 9 vL8 0E6 %S8EL 185 110 ¥ooIsWoD[ oL
%96°EL-__ |LL8l 019l %68ve- | eLLBLL | 85668 %VES LLSL 2651 %ES G- 62V Ll L6101 PEOY D] 60
%607L-___|9cwh VEZl %60k~ | ¥6res £88'Sy %S84 Iheh ZT bl %ve |- £86'V 916 ¥ uojsalba| 80
%E6'S- 0Z6L s0'8l %0E G- 008'69 £01'99 %6622 |9L°6L ZZ Sl %.9'lg- | €018 LvE'Q owely| /0
%865 £- SShL E0 ¥l %G8 L £6v'2S £25'15 %EYEL-__ |95 bl LST) %E0Z)L- | £60'9 LOE'S uswioied| 90
%88 7L ov'Sh 9L LL %vl6e- | 0BE VS 0L EE %09 vl 86k 88'Fl %20'8e- | 00E'S 58ee uewise3|  go
%99'G- €501 £6'6 %10°E- 70€'8¢ 2S1'2E %l G- 6v'6 00'6 %Lt L 168 ov6'E puepEQ| 0
%LE 0" 1911 E9LL %E8 0 E6EEV SE0'ty %086~ 8L 0k zL'6 %207 Evr Y Z9Z ¥ uebiuoiy 1sapM| €0
%0L 6L~ |6L 02 129k %C6 LL- | £8CEL 15109 %6TEC 9L €L 96°91 %S0°ZE £29'S Seh'L ebepod|  zo
%S8LL-  |Wele 10'¥2 %vLLl- | £2069L | GE0'6EL _ |%88°0 VR Z6'€C %880 60791 92 91 abpawsam| 10
[eseaiap |[UNERGL | zzAd | oseadoap 2ZAd aseaidep ZZAd esealoep E ajnoy #onoy

| esealau] Inoy Jad sapiy | @sEeaidu| SOpPIY J0 # | asealou| 1noy 1ad saply | aseaiou] SOpIy 10 &
Sjeq 03 1ea\ 18 0) UJUON

zzoz ‘Ainp
SISATVYNY dIHS¥3AIN
odLan




surey

dasg Sny

Mnf asunp  Aew  udy  yose  qad uer  2a@ AON 20

e A e = 0

005

0007
005'T
000'Z
005z
D00'E

Yauo Ag diysiaply [ooduen

dasg any Ainr aunr  Aew judy  ysey  ge4 uer 23Q AON P0

dag  8ny inr unf Aeyy idy ey Qa4 uer Jag  AON »0
] R R ; 0
_ 000'C
TZAd-= 000 TTAd-=
TTAIS- 000'9 TTAI0=
0008
000'0T
00021
Yiuo\l Aq diysiapiy 20N Yuow Aq diysiapry aanoy-paxid
LIE'L 9LE'L Sez't 286 654 SLL zL 6F 65 0 2z L€2
zEP'e 908'L 'L LEv'L Zig'L £V6 988 (- TR 645"} o8b'L
deg Bny Ainp eunp LCT udy [ELT qad uep oeQ AON [E)
1s5'a EEV'R 699'8 9.6'9 829'9 £60'2 0L6'L 0£F'9 161’9 156'S 212’9 159°L
BLL'6 £20'04 6r0'0} 168'6 955'04 ogr'e £LL'8 205’8 L.0'8 20Z'6
deg Bny nr unp el dy 1N qed uer LT AON 20
00214 ¥11'06 S8 LLE SzL'oLl 056°0L 4 |3 rar A 6.9'071 28E'e2L FPO'LLL 8pF'86 £85'001 orE'oLl
1¥g'aoL GZL'ELL §1.'80L Op'eLL ¥LE'0Z) 0zv'L0L 8y'v0L 16L'66 9E6'041 180°LLL
dag Bny AN EIT few ady yolepy qed uer J8Qg AON 190

zzoz ‘AInr
Z20Z Ad 0Nl

000'0Z
000'oy
000'09
000'08
000'00T
000°0ZT
000°0bT
000'09T

bZAd
TTAL
jooduep

ZAd
ZZTAL
ekl ||

LZAd
ZZAd
SInoy-paxid



a%a%%%%%«,%mm

[¢]

+ 005
+ oot
— 1 00ST
000z
0057
000°€
- 00S'E
000'%

7 ) - 2 [ z
- T > o e o, = -] o - — | s — o = -
—p—a—a—8—8—=o 0 \1.. -8 -——n—=s- 0 -—a—= —a——a—8— 0

—_ . ) = + oot )
s 0oz
- ) ) ] o 3 = 1 00E
= ———————— TZAd~m~ ; —— oov
— N1 005
s ) N | ® |
————— - N oo
o ) — 008
— 006 - _— 000'SE
diysiapiy NAIM "
— e i = |
0is'E Lig' 289'c 0 0st ZEE'L SkO'L lze oz8 €26 LLL'L 0zL'L 1ZAd
69r'L SBE'L 9ze'L SBL vze Z8E 525 2oL 696 ¥26'L 2ZAL
deg Bny Ainr sunf LET Ty youep qa3 uef 380 AON 00 sajig
Ly iid -4 4 0 0 o 0 {1} 0 9z 0 0 +ZAd
: €L9 vLL 255 Pl d 862 051 rie 652 v8Z osy ZTAd
dos Bny’ LT sunf L] Ty YOI qed e 380 AoN 90 S4|RYOjBOUM

Lie 0 () 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1ZAd

102 124 0S¢ 56¢ ISE Ly ove 052 9zy £08 ZZAd

deg Bny LT3 sunf Rew THdy Y2IEN qad uep J8d AON 90 20AN

SLO'LE ¥as'L 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1 bZAd

10v'Z) POV'EL 08zt 190'08 049'08 £28'2E £rb'SZ sLz'al z19'82 L0L'0E ZZAd

dag Bny A sunr LET] THdY UIEN CEF] uer EC] AON 90 M
zzoe ‘Anr

2207 Ad onBiN



SH - lieAY

i z . ceze B
—t - == %000 | #0002 | |
_ |
[
_ %000
%00°005 |
4 | %00°02 _ |
| ]
| , |
_ M \J_‘ %00°000T - %0000 |
|
|
H %00'09 |
| |
| jooduep=g= A Y T | _
[ %0008 [ 7
_ m
| 7 | |
000002 | %0000T _
| |
| _ ——— %00°0ZT _
L %o0'00sz S
_ (20 '8 @1noy-paxid)
jooduep apo Aq a3ueyd % alA _ apoy Aq aSueyd % alA 7 |e101 wia3sAs aLA
%EELEE  %BEOLD  %OTLOZL %EZOOPL %IYEB6L %OESKSL %EVESZL  %YILOZL %YL LSOl  %O0O'LTS |ooduep
dag Bny. Anp eunp Ren mdy [EXCT] CEE] U 380 AON 0 aBueyd % QLA
UYEZTE  %LOOE  %LOSE  WESEE  %EESOL  %OESY  %ZETE %BOOE  %0OPZ  %LTOT 20N
%EOY-  %lEF  %ITG %GOG %60 %IEE-  %EEL %¥l'0 %LYO- %S aAnoy-paxi3
deg Bny Rinr sunt e Hdy yazew ga3 uer 330 AN 190 abueyp % aLA
PPE'PSP'L  OLB'0EE'L  LPE'OEZ'L  8SS'S0M'L  GE'PB6  ZI8'098  IGE'LEL  OE9'8SS  66L'BSK  66¥'LPE  0SO'LEZ  BZTFTL 1ZAd
SO9'E0L'L  Yi'ZE0'L 9/2'096  LIS'OVE  SBL'OLL  £bZPRS PRSP PIBTIZE  wIS'OPE O6YFEL ZZAd
dss Bny Ainp aunp few udy’ [(EXTT] qed uer EEn] AON 190 Iejo ), waysAs QLA

zzoz ‘Aine

220 Ad onely

00000z |

00000V

000009 |

zzoueis



